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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Principal activities

The principal activities of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”] are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results

The Group’s loss for the year and the Group's financial position at 31 March 2021 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 168.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Lee George LAM (Chairman)

Karen CHAN Ka-yin

Duncan CHIU

Annie CHOI Suk-han

LING Kar-kan

Victor NG Chi-keung

Hendrick SIN

Charleston SIN Chiu-shun

Rosana WONG Wai-man

Eric YEUNG Chuen-sing

Christopher CHAQ Yu-hang (appointed on 1 April 2020)
lvy CHEUNG Wing-han (appointed on 1 April 2020)
Michael LEUNG Kin-man (appointed on 1 April 2020)
LAU Kwok-fan (appointed on 1 April 2021)

LAU Chun-kong [retired on 31 March 2021)

Charmaine Amy WONG Hoi-wan (alternate director to Annie CHOI Suk-han,
appointed on 8 June 2021)

Eva YAM Ya-ling (alternate director to Annie CHOI Suk-han,
appointed on 1 February 2021 and resigned on 8 June 2021)

Davey CHUNG Pui-hong (alternate director to Annie CHOI Suk-han,
resigned on 1 February 2021)

There being no provision in the Company's Articles of Association in connection with
the retirement of directors by rotation, all existing Directors continue in office for the
following year.
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The persons who were directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report (unless otherwise stated) were:

Peter YAN King-shun
LEE Kok-ming

WONG Kiu-hei (alternate director to Peter YAN King-shun, resigned on 29
August 2020)

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Company’s directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the Company to which
the Company or any of the Company’'s holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Save for the management agreement of Le Méridien Hong Kong, Cyberport, the
facilities management agreement and the system operation contract, no other
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries were entered
into or existed during the year.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the permitted indemnity provision as
defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance for the benefit of the
directors of the Company was in force. The Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for the directors’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions against its
directors arising out of corporate activities.
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Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Ernst & Young retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A
resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lee George LAM
Chairman

Hong Kong
10 September 2021
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We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 94 to 168, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
furtherdescribed in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the report of the Directors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors of the Company either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Ourobjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetherthe consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement

and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

92

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the

Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue

as agoing concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible

for our audit opinion.
We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
10 September 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
freEm e 2EEE

Year ended 31 March 2021 #ZE2021F3831HIEFE Year ended 31 March 2021 & ZE2021F3831HIEFE

2021 2020 2021 2020
Notes HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
HieE BT BT BT BT
REVENUE A 4 352,245,316 478,264,533 LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE (212,787,639) (140,472,148)
Other net income HAthUg A P28 4 141,876,221 35,731,925
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hiha2mkzs (B518)
494,121,537 513,996,458
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will notbe  HREEERIETEEMDEEEE
EXPENSES BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION Rt AREREHNZHRK reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: ~ Hft2EWaE, (B8) :
ACTIVITIES EXPENSES AND DEPRECIATION ® N
il el - Changes in fair value of equity investments - IBERRAABESA
Building management expenses MEEETH (176,618,733) (159,133,049) designated at fair value through other HtheEWm 2 RAKREZ
Sl costs STMA 5 (94,478,289) (102,402,072) comprehensive income RABEEH 19,150,647 (6,492,498)
Government rent and rates HOFE R A ? (16,174,321) (16,881,122) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FREMBERE S (55E8)
Other operating expenses HAhAE s (76,392,941) (82,662,362) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (30pRHRI1E) 19,150,647 (6,492,498)
Flneines cosis M b (120,095) (154,787) TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR  FRREAS 18448 (193,636,992)  (146,964,646)
(363,784,379) (361,233,392)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION R AREREHZTHRZ
ACTIVITIES EXPENSES AND DEPRECIATION e Z & s 130,337,158 152,763,066
Public mission activities expenses NREEEIZ H 10 (187,529,534) (153,418,150)
Fair value losses on debt investments at BAMNEBESABRZ
fair value through profit or loss, net BEHREEANEEFEE (6,494,109) (2,305,517)
OPERATING LOSS BEFORE DEPRECIATION ReHITENKEESE (63,686,485) (2,960,601)
Depreciation e (149,101,154) (137,511,547)
LOSS BEFORE TAX PR EiES 18 6 (212,787,639) (140,472,148)
Income tax FRiS# 11 - -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREIE (212,787,639) (140,472,148)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
rE AR

As at 31 March 2021 73202143831H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MTINRR

As at 31 March 2021 82021434831H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Deferred rental receivables
Cyberport Macro Fund investments
Investments in securities

Prepayments and deposits

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Investments in securities

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Rental and other deposits

Amount due to the immediate holding company

Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
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NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Development maintenance fund

Lease liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

2021 2020

Notes HK$ HK$
B aE BT BT
13 2,757,289,540 2,834,964,584
14(a) 5,831,665 6,606,435
13,295,348 7,274,144

15 149,017,792 99,768,100
16 49,108,104 84,074,954
18 36,488,433 22,999,823
3,011,030,882  3,055,688,040

212,200 319,821

17 20,403,184 19,780,948
18 44,298,659 26,514,196
27(b) 2,041,992 3,293,234
16 758,439,671 708,251,929
19 383,979,684 417,576,079
1,209,375,390 1,175,736,207
50,240,157 41,976,221

20 275,983,171 101,432,350
21 95,430,483 94,797,218
27(b) 254,293,578 254,293,578
14(b) 2,533,072 1,941,181
678,480,461 494,440,548
530,894,929 681,295,659

3,541,925,811

3,736,983,699

Lee George LAM
HxRE
Director

Ex
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2021 2020

Notes HK$ HK$
(i AT BT
22 387,752,187 390,999,654
14(b) 3,534,463 4,955,359
391,286,650 395,955,013
3,150,639,161 3,341,028,686

23 300,000,002 300,000,002

2,850,639,159

3,041,028,684

3,150,639,161

3,341,028,686

Victor NG Chi-keung
FIEEE
Director

EF
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Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year:

- Changes in fair value of equity
investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Subtotal

Transfer from development
maintenance fund to capital reserve

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year:

- Changes in fair value of equity
investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income, net of tax

Total comprehensive Loss for the year

Subtotal

Transfer of fair value reserve
upon the deregistration of an
equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Transfer from development
maintenance fund to capital reserve

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,850,639,159 (2020: HK$3,041,028,684) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Notes
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ZEHERE ARSI R R 2 475 #152,850,639,15978 7T (20204 : 3,041,028,68487T) ©
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5,367,633.829 14,569,725
(6.492.498)
(6.492.498)
5,367,633.829 8,077,227
6,612.928
5,374,246,757* 8,077,227*
19,150,647
19,160,647
5,374,246,757 21,227,874
5,896,600
3,247,467
5,377,494,224* 33124,476*

(2.200.823.152)

(140.472,148)

(140.472,148)

(2.341,295,300)

(2,341,295,3001

(212,787,639)

(212,787,639)

(2,554,082,939)

(5,896,600)

(2,559,979,539)*

3,481,380.404

(140.472,148)

(6.492.498)

(146.964,846)

3,334.415,758

6.612928

3,341,028,686

(212,787,639)

19,150,647

(193,636,992)

3,147,391,694

3,247,467

3,150,639,161

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Realisation of government grants

Interest income from financial assets at
amortised cost, net of amortisation of premium

Interest income from investments at
fair value through profit or loss

Fair value losses on debt investments at fair

value through profit or loss, net

Net realised/unrealised (gains)/losses on
investments at fair value through profit or loss

Interest income on bank deposits
Impairment of trade receivables
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables

Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment, net

Finance costs

Revaluation (gains)/losses on investments

(Increasel/decrease in deferred rental receivables
Decrease in inventories
Increase in trade receivables

Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries

Increase in trade payables

Increase/(decrease] in other payables and
accruals

Decrease in an amount due to a fellow subsidiary

Increase in rental and other deposits
Cash used in operations

Interest on lease liabilities
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(212,787,639)

147,055,454
2,045,700
(129,270,528)

(2,757,876)

(19,213,670)

6,494,109

(8,583,560)
(2,557,919)
1,292,484
(48,507)

6,800,860
120,095
(214,200)

(211,625,197)

(6,021,204)
107,621
(1,866,213)

(27,049,150)

1,251,242
8,263,936

59,605,517

633,265

(176,700,183)
(120,095)

(176,820,278)

2020

HK$
BT

(140,472,148)

135,595,484
1,916,063
(4,297,395)

(3,376,292)

(20,935,716

2,305,517

3,090,074
(9,146,004)
48,507
(60,908)

153,327
154,787
996,824

(34,027,880)

1,229,011
17,590
(8,782,281)

(16,100,683)

(3,032,234
13,487,886

(47,875,990)
(192,321)
12,664,932

(82,611,970)
(154,787)

(82,766,757)
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2020 2020

Notes HK$ Notes HK$
HieE BT FisE BT
Purchase of items of property, X Government grants received BB ATHEIE 238,715,832 6,853,195
e o Propery A KB RRHIEE g
plantand equipment (54,191,685 (96.641,012) Principal portion of lease payments AEMRZ A2 25(b) (2,099,935) (1,874,773)
Prepayment and deposits paid for the purchase of ~ BEAMZ 428 R B ER PR
items of property, plant and equipment BRERZS (21,989,585 (10,888,302) 236,615,897 4,978,422
Purchase of Cyberport Macro Fund investments ~ BASSERBAIXESRE (36,593,154) (39,570,276) (58,855,590) 128,452,221
Purchase of investments at fair value through PN e
profit or loss BARASMBEBARE 2 RH (254,105,772) (395,718,342) Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year FHIZREKIREEEEE 417,576,079 289,123,858
Purchase of financial assets at amortised cost BAREIER AR EREE - (14,331,839)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of financial HEKRBREHREB I AT R TRE
assets at amortised cost EFrERIE - 151,188,111 358,720,489 417,576,079
Proceeds from sale and redemption of investments HEKEEIZ AN EBEFABGRZH
at fair value through profit or loss BEFTERIE 247,542,194 213,575,419
Interest income received from: BUF S
- Financial assets at amortised cost - REIHA ASR Y SR E E 2,896,146 5,477,885
. . VPN N
- Investments at fair value through profit or loss - AARBESABD ZKE 20,208,404 25,562,253 Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the FRERBEARRASIRER
a consolidated statement of financial position REEEEE 19 383,979,684 417,576,079
- Bank deposits - IR1TEAR 2,841,438 8,712,784 N .
o - o . s Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity ~ PEERERIIEAB=EAU L=
(Increase)/decrease in time deposits with original E:Uﬁﬁa%?Tlﬁlﬁl—XtZEﬁﬁﬁm of more than three months when acquired AR AT 19 (25,259,195 .
maturity of more than three months (3&m) /b (25,259,195) 358,873,875
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the GERERBRATIRER
consolidated statement of cash flows BEEEEE 358,720,489 417,576,079

(118,651,209) 206,240,556

100 Cyberport 2020/21 Annual Report &% 2020/21 3R 101




102

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”] is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office
of the Company is located at Level 6, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road,
Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is to support and promote innovation
and technology development in Hong Kong through the creation of a

comprehensive ecosystem of digital technology companies.

With a vision to build Cyberport as a main force in developing the digital
technology industry as a key economic driver of Hong Kong [the “Vision”],
the public mission of the Company is anchored on three strategic directions:

Nurtures youth and start-ups by providing comprehensive
entrepreneurship programmes and early stage funding;

Scales digital tech companies with Cyberport’s global network; and

Connects enterprises, SMEs and the public in fostering digital economy.

Under the Group's relentless pursuit of excellence, the Group takes a
pragmatic and comprehensive approach in realising its Vision. To ensure the
line-up of services is dynamic and flexible in meeting the needs of budding
technology entrepreneurs, investor community and industry talents, the
Company actively builds strong partnerships with leaders from technology
industry, academia, research institutes and professional bodies.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable start-ups,
the Company has launched the Cyberport Macro Fund ("CMF"] for Hong
Kong-based digital entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size of HK$200
million, the CMF aims to provide Cyberport's start-ups with early financing
and promote the development of venture capital ecosystem in Hong Kong.
In April 2021, Cyberport has committed to inject an additional HK$200
million into the CMF and extend the scope to cover Series B and later
stage investments. Further details of the investments made up to the end
of the reporting period are included in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has established various teams (“Operating Teams”] to achieve
the above public mission. The expenses incurred by Operating Teams that
contribute to the successful running of the public mission activities are
disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Kong Cyberport
Development Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and
is wholly owned by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region ("HKSAR") via The Financial Secretary Incorporated.
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Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

7

Cyberport Macro Fund Limited

CMF One Limited

CMF Two Limited

CMF Three Limited

CMF Four Limited

CMF Five Limited

CMF Six Limited

CMF Seven Limited

CMF Eight Limited

Place of
incorporation

Eaiiipaveu s

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
a8
Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong
a8
Hong Kong
BE
Hong Kong

a8

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
a8

Issued ordinary
share capital
BETEERE

HK$1
187t

HK$1
1787t
HK$1
187t
HK$1
187t
HK$1
1787t
HK$1
1787t
HK$1
187t
HK$1
1787t

HK$1
187t

AT ZHBATFBNT:

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
FABEGEEmADLE
Direct Indirect
B ik

100 -
= 100
= 100
- 100
- 100
= 100
= 100
- 100
- 100

Principal activities

FTEXH

Investment holding

REZER

Investment holding

rEER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

BREER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

rEER
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These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, debt investments at fair value through profit
or loss and equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income which have been measured at fair value. These consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is
also the functional currency of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Group. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee [i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Group has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power overan investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Group, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted foras an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i] the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, [ii) the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interest and [iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises |[i] the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii] any resulting
surplus ordeficitin profitorloss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2078 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current
year's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (early adopted)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are described below:

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of concepts for financial
reporting and standard setting, and provides guidance for preparers of
financial statements in developing consistent accounting policies and
assistance to all parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on measurement and
reporting financial performance, new guidance on the derecognition of
assetsand liabilities, and updated definitions and recognition criteria for
assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual
Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts contained
therein override the concepts or requirements in any standard. The
Conceptual Framework did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the
definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets to be considered a business, it must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs
and acquired substantive processes together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have also narrowed
the definition of outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or otherincome from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to transactions or other events
that occurred on or after 1 April 2020. The amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.
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Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address issues
affecting financial reporting in the period before the replacement of
an existing interest rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate
("RFR”). The amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable
hedge accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty before
the introduction of the alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information to investors
about their hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties. The amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group does not have any
interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for lessees to
elect not to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic. The
practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as
a direct consequence of the pandemic and only if (i) the change in
lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; (i) any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and
(iii) there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of
the lease. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application permitted and shall be
applied retrospectively. The amendment did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information, or both. The amendments did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have
beenissued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework®
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase’
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7.
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

and HKAS 28 (2011) Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts *’

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current “*
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies*

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates *

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction*

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property. Plant and Equjpment: Proceeds befare Intended Use®

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract®

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS |,

HKFRSs 2018-2020 HKFRS 9 llustrative Examples accompanying

HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41°

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

> No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

¢ As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no
change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was
amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle
for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities
and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or
HKI(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in
a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS
37 or HKI(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
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Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 April 2022. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on
or after the date of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced
with an alternative risk-free rate. The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated without
adjusting the carrying amount when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if
the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform
and the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding the change.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose additional
information to enable users of financial statements to understand the effect
of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments and
risk management strategy. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively, but
entities are not required to restate the comparative information.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
orjointventure constitutes a business. Foratransactioninvolving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA
in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint
ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the
end of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
retrospectively only to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented
in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract(e.g.,directlabourand materials)and anallocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract as well as contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded
unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which it first applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial application without
restating the comparative information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to
the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity includes
when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability
are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is not
expected to have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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The Group measures its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
debt investments at fair value through profit or loss, and equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place eitherin the principal market for the asset or liability,
orin the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in

the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value

hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets
and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for anindividual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.
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An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
forthe assetin prioryears. Areversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

a. thepartyisapersonoraclose member of that person’s family and that
person:

i. has control or joint control over the Group;
ii. hassignificant influence over the Group; or

iii. is.a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of
a parent of the Group;
or

b. the partyis an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

ii. one entityis an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

iii. the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

iv. oneentityisajointventure of a third entity and the other entityis an
associate of the third entity;

v. the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

vi. the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a);

vii. a person identified in (a(i) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); and

viii. the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Group or to the parent
of the Group.
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
forits intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plantand equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

Buildings Over the period of the lease
Building services and support facilities 10%

Information technology facilities 20%

Centres equipment 20% - 33'/5%

Leasehold improvements 10%

Furniture and equipment 10% - 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful
lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all

leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The

Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use

assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

a. Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

b. Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.
The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments] less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to
be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for termination
of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

c. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its
short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease
or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as a
finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which
the Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption, the Group
classifies the sublease as an operating lease.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS
15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest ("SPPI"] on
the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial
assets which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost [debt instruments]

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income [equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity
investments as equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part
of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Cyberport 2020/21 Annual Report

FEEEESMEEZEBRAEHUMNEER
THEENELERTRB - XBRAEERS R
BEGREBUNEGMNRERE HESHEENR
W& RRET I E R AD B RGBHNERE
ERUFAEREESERNEFRAARTE S
FPRENRTRE MR AR EBESARMEE
WD R BNEREENR SR A URRS
HNREMNBRUHENEBRARNFTA - LIFU L
HEFBEAANFENTREER QA BESARE
mDAKRETE

TREEZFMABSREERNRZZH (BAEHEK
HEEZEERR) Ml - BREBEEAN—REZ
RENTIHEOIEEZBEARVEEZ SREE

EEL

TRYEEZ HIEStBRUANE T 048!

R RATNRZ R EE (EFTA)
BREBEAAI R SREEARERBRNZE
STENAERRERE EXEER LB BTN
ER > Wi KBS IR ER S R RS o

EERARLEBEFARMEE N m T HEZE
(RERE)

RIS HRE  HRAKREFEEBEHERFH32
RERMTA: 2B TZRAEE  BXIFFFE
B> AEE AR ER R R AR E D ERIE
EERAABESARMEZEREZREKRE 5
$ETHIRME R TEEEMEE

ZEEMEE T RBIRX T EMAE R
EX R R EARMEEN DR R4S
' BRES R FEER BIRE SN B
RBRAEMUEA EHAEEREBNZEMSRRAE
AWEBOSREER SRR ELERT
ERREEARSEMEERT - IEERANEE
StARMEE S 2 RARERAEITREN G

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments which
the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset
host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host together with
the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its entirety as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates, if and to
what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nortransferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.
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The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECLJ. For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECLJ.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments
are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3- Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
[but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired] and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component and
lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.
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A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs of disposal.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and
bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provisionis the presentvalue at the end of each reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase
in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the jurisdictions in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item,
it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception. When the contract contains
a financing component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Hotel and management services

Revenue from the provision of hotel and management services is recognised
over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from food and beverage

Revenue from sale of food and beverages is recognised at the point in time
when the control of the assets is transferred to the buyer, generally upon
consumption of the food and beverage items by the customer.

Other facilities services

Revenue from promotion, additional air-conditioning and chilled water
charge, license fee and other facilities charge is recognised over time
as services are rendered if the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from event and venue fee, vetting and coordination fee, tenants
bus ticket and other premise fee is recognised at the point in time when
customer has obtained control of the service, generally when the services
are rendered.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Car park fee is recognised when the services are rendered.

Other incidental income and services income are recognised when the
income is entitled and services are rendered.

Interestincome is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
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A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers
the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
whichisthe Group’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the consolidated financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
atthe dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of each reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.
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The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

The Group performs review for impairment of non-financial assets whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets may not be recoverable.

The Group reviews certain indicators of potential impairment of these
assets such as reported sales and purchase prices, market demand
and general market conditions. The Group considers “Buildings held for
rental”, "Hotel building” and “Building services and support facilities”
as a portfolio of assets and identifies the cash-generating unit to which
the portfolio of assets belongs by referring to the valuation performed by
independent professional valuers, after taking into consideration the net
income allowing for reversionary potential. The assumptions adopted in the
property valuation are based on the market conditions existing at the end of
the reporting period, with reference to current market sales prices and the
appropriate capitalisation rate.

Based on the Group’s best estimates, no provision for impairment loss on
the non-financial assets is necessary.
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The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 on initial classification of non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity as financial assets at amortised cost if the Group has the intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity; or at fair value through
profit or loss if the investments are managed by external fund managers
and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and information
about the investments is provided internally on that basis to the Group's key
management.

For financial assets at amortised cost, the Group evaluates its intention and
ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep these
investments to maturity other than for specific circumstances - for example,
selling an insignificant amount close to maturity - it will be required to
reclassify the entire class as debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The investments would, therefore, be measured at
fair value not at amortised cost.

For investments designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the Group
engages external fund managers to manage the investment portfolio which
is evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis. Accordingly, these
investments are designated as at fair value through profit or loss and are
stated at fair value with subsequent changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and
other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’'s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions [i.e., gross domestic product] are expected
to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the financial services, media and retail sectors, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default rates,
forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount
of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast economic
conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's trade
receivables is disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The unlisted equity investments and unlisted debt investments have been
valued based on the recent market transaction prices, market-based valuation
technique and expected cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for
items with similar terms and risk characteristics. The valuations require the
Group to make estimates about expected future cash flows, credit risk, volatility
and discount rates, and to determine the comparable public companies (peers)
and select the price multiple or enterprise value multiple, and hence, they
are subject to uncertainty. The fair values of the unlisted equity investments
and unlisted debt investments at 31 March 2021 were HK$139,467,740 and
HK$9,550,052, respectively. Further details are included in notes 15 and 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such as technical
or commercial obsolescence arising from change or improvements in
the provision of services, or from a change in the market demand for the
service output of the asset, the expected usage of the asset, the expected
physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal
or similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life
of the asset is based on the experience of the Group with similar assets
that are used in a similar way. An adjustment of depreciation is made if the
estimated useful lives and/or residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period based on changes
in circumstances.

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease, and
therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate ("IBR") to measure lease
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as the Group that does not enter into financing transactions)
or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease (for example, when leases are not in the Group’s functional currency).
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the Company’s stand-alone credit rating).

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.
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An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers
Income from hotel operation
Building management income
- Management fee income

- Other facilities income

Revenue from other sources
Rental income

Variable lease payments that do not depend on

anindex or a rate

Other lease payments, including fixed payments

Car park fee income

Other incidental income
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WA Z DT

EREGAIIA
BIEEEWA
L/ES=$=2ON

— BEEEWRA
— HhaR A

RARZIA
GETON
WRERH SRS 2
BELHGE
BB QEEENR

TAEEWA
EAMEWA

52,453,120

94,703,372
22,333,087

169,489,579

3,360,287
165,543,237

168,903,524

13,758,379
93,834

182,755,737

352,245,316

2020
HK$
BT

92,786,366

89,628,540
24,104,714

206,519,620

6,267,562
250,968,235

257,235,797

14,232,358
276,758

271,744,913

478,264,533

Income from hotel operation BEIEEEUA

- Room income —ZRA

- Food and beverage income —Bm&EEHRA
Building management income MEEEBIRA

- Management fee income —EEERA

- Other facilities income —HA R WA

Total revenue from contracts with customers BERAHUA4EEE

Hong Kong B

RE—ERBREEEZ IR
FERsEE B IR

Services transferred at a point in time

Services transferred over time

Total revenue from contracts with customers BERAHUA4EEE

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was included in
contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

BEEEWA

Income from hotel operation

Information about the Group's performance obligations is

summarised below:

The performance obligation is satisfied over time when services

are rendered.

The performance obligation is satisfied when the customer
obtains control of the promised goods, being at the point when the
customer consumes the food and beverage at the restaurants.
Payment of the transaction is due immediately at the point when
the customer consumes the food and beverage.

2020

HK$

BT

29,506,491 44,962,542
22,946,629 47,823,824
94,703,372 89,628,540
22,333,087 24,104,714
169,489,579 206,519,620
169,489,579 206,519,620
35,197,606 63,034,579

134,291,973 143,485,041
169,489,579 206,519,620

TRHIINAREHAPMEDAARSHIE
WEBEhZWAEER:

2020

HK$
BT

HESSRSAR S HI SN /AP WA

2,528,683 1,979,225

BERAERENREERRmT:

BHNEEREHBREKEZFBESM
1T

BHNBEENT RIS KRS M2 EH R (R
BEREREHERRBKIIEER) BT -ERH
FERmMAEE R RIS 325
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The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are

rendered.

The performance obligation is satisfied over time or at the point in time

as services are rendered.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining

performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) which
amounted to HK$1,554,816 as at 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$2,528,683)

are expected to be recognised within one year.

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost,
net of amortisation of premium of HK$140,445
(2020: HK$166,967)

Interest income from investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Interest income on bank deposits
Services income from fellow subsidiaries (note)

Net realised/unrealised gains/(losses) on investments
fair value through profit or loss

Foreign exchange differences, net

Bad debts recovered

Reversal of impairment of trade receivables
Government grants

Government subsidies on rental waiver

Others

Note:

B0 BT 10 R A AR T Y PR S B RO I TS T B
G

RAEEEER RSN R AR RET

R2021F3831H DEEFGBNEE
(REBITRBORERT) 2RZBIEA
1,554,816 7t (20204 : 2,528,683 7T) »
TEHAR IS — A RERD ©

2020
HK$
BT
REHR AT IR SRMEEZFE
WA 0B B 85140,4458 7T
(20204 : 166,96 73 7T) 2,757,876 3,376,292
BARBESABRZ
2 A EURA 19,213,670 20,935,716
IRTERZMBEWA 2,557,919 9,146,004
RARMBATZRFBUWA (MisE) 4,201,654 4,201,654
BRARMEESABRZREZEEER
SRERWE (B518) 358 8,583,560 (3,090,074)
SNEZEREFER 1,884,271 (5,096,946)
ERARFIZ ] - 790,113
B el EW AR ZRE 48,507 60,908
BB 2,358,000 880,000
RS 2 BUT &2 96,394,713 =
Htth 3,876,051 4,528,258
141,876,221 35,731,925

On 24 May 2000, a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam [the “Residential
Portion”) was assigned to Hong Kong Cyberport (Ancillary Development) Limited ("HKCADL'], a
fellow subsidiary, by Hong Kong Cyberport Development Holdings Limited (the “immediate holding
company”). Pursuant to the services agreement dated 25 October 2003 entered into between the
Company and HKCADL, fixed monthly services income of HK$125,600 was received from HKCADL
commencing from November 2003 for the provision of services by the Company to facilitate the
operation of the Residential Portion. The fee was revised to HK$200,000 commencing from April
2006 and to HK$261,000 commencing from May 2008. The total amount received during the year was

HK$3,132,000 (2020: HK$3,132,000).

Pursuant to the services agreement dated 12 March 2005 entered into between the Company
and Skillful Limited, a fellow subsidiary, monthly services income was received for the provision
of information technology and telecommunications services to the Residential Portion. The total

amount received during the year was HK$1,069,654 (2020: HK$1,069,654).
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120004658248 EHBEHURZRAAT (TEFERAT)
BRRANBATEBHEE (WEHE) ARASE (THKCADLY) #t
HSH ARSI AR 1 P FR 89698 A — &8 3t (TMETEH ) o 1R
HBAAB)EHKCADLPETIZHERA2003 108258 2 IRBHE > &2
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WER 125,600 78 2 Bl ARFE WA © B2006 545 K 20084E55#E > it
B EDBIEFT%E5200,00078 7T K& 261,00087T - AEE E UL
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RIEAATRFERKBABSKillful LimitedFTsTz HEE%2005
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RS A WERFS A - R EE B N ABEEA1,069,6548 T
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An analysis of staff costs is as follows:

Salaries and allowances
Unutilised annual leave
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Staff benefits and other staff costs

Analysed into:
Hotel

Corporate office

Operating Teams [note 10)

#re RoRRh

REAER
RMEHEHBIHR

BT RFMFMEME TRE

PA
BIE
NEERER

EEERK (PFEE10)

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/[crediting):

Rental income less outgoings of HK$14,946,321
(2020: HK$15,277,822)

Cost of inventories
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

Auditor’s remuneration
Impairment of trade receivables
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables

Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment, net

Finance costs:

Interest on lease liabilities

BTHRAZIMINT

2020

HK$

BT

127,248,326 122,073,882
2,427,735 2,658,055
5,637,175 5112,622
1,843,750 1,161,760
137,156,986 131,006,319
42,597,092 53,389,069
51,881,197 49,013,003
94,478,289 102,402,072
42,678,697 28,604,247
137,156,986 131,006,319

REBZBRIRATFBIBENRR GtA) THIEER:!

2020
Notes HK$
My sE BT
THE W AFRRESZ 14,946,321 70
(2020: 15,277,822 7%) (153,957,203) (241,957,975)
FERA 9,637,808 14,621,743
M B R BT E 13 147,055,454 135,595,484
ERREERE 14(a) 2,045,700 1,916,063
= 1= %E S E A %ﬁ
FEAHER R ENEENR 14(c) 210,781 2711686
ZE BN 336,000 310,000
FEUSBRTR 2 L& 17 1,292,484 48,507
ORI Z R E 17 (48,507) (60,908)
HEYE HBARREREZBR
PR 6,800,860 153,327
MEBER:
HEAEZFE 120,095 154,787
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The emoluments of the Directors of the Group disclosed pursuant to section RIESBATRAFIEI8I()ERAT (REEEF An analysis of government rent and rates is as follows: M R 2 DT
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies WER) ROIE2E IR E Y ANERMEEWENT:
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as

follows: 2020
HK$
BT
2020
%Kﬁ Hotel SIS 1,228,000 1,603,300
BIT
Corporate office NERERR 14,946,321 15,277,822
Directors’ fees HFEBE - - 16,174,321 16,881,122
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN REYET - - Operating Teams (note 10) EERK (I5E10) 430,985 508,187
Discretionary bonuses EYIBTEAT - - 16,605,306 17.389.309
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIMHRR - -
Details of the remuneration of the five non-director highest paid employees hEFEERSHEEZMEFBUT: All direct and indirect expenses incurred for the primary and dominant AR LR EBBEN KRGS M RRM LR
are as follows: purpose of public mission and that contribute to the successful running of RINEMAREEBFMEE ZMEEERERE
public mission activities as described in note 1 to the consolidated financial SXHITRAR A AR E BB S - ARSI HEIE
statements are considered as public mission activities expenses. Such
2020 expenses comprise:
HK$
BIT
2020
Salaries and allowances e KRR 13,302,366 12,753,288 HK$
N BT
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRAEF 5T BN 180,000 180,000 v
13,482,366 12,933,288 Staff costs BT 42,678,697 28,604,247
Information technology facilities maintenance fees ~ BRI REREER 28,245,175 29,422,785
The number of the non-director highest paid employee whose remuneration MENFUTHEEZFEEESHESZEEW Financial assistance to industry start-ups EERTAITEREZ 93,501,733 64,457,195
iellwithinithe following bands isasiollows: L Programme expenses (seminars, trainings, stEIZE (AT & B3l EEE
competitions, workshops and exhibitions) TR MRE) 13,797,925 31,275,521
2020 Government rent and rates 78 e = ) 430,985 508,187
Public mission communications NREEE 6,731,163 7,216,218
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0013% 75 2,500,000 7% 3 3 Operating expenses oo 10,400.182 5.882.120
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,0013855.%3,000,00038 7 1 1 Government project expenses ——— 28,396,883 )
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001/ 75%4,000,0007 7 1 ! Recovery of direct expenses (including government  WEIEZZ H (BEBFHEE
5 5 grants of HK$30,517,815 (2020: HK$3,417,395)) 30,517,815/ 7T (20204 : 3,417,395
A7) ) (36,653,209) (13,948,123)
187,529,534 153,418,150
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No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year
(2020: Nil).

Areconciliation of the tax credit applicable to the loss before tax at the Hong

Kong statutory rate to the tax amount at the Group’s effective tax rate is as
follows:

BRI AIES IR

Loss before tax

Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate

of 16.5% MIEE R
Income not subject to tax BAEFMZWA
Expenses not deductible for tax GIE G o Ea
Tax losses not recognised KrERBZNIERE

Tax amount at the Group's effective tax rate

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

At 1 April 2019 120194818 (126,945,359)

Deferred tax (credited)/
charged to profit or

FANREE GIA)

R Z IRETR IR
loss during the year (23,047,587)
At 31 March 2020 and R20205F3H318 &
1 April 2020 20204818 (149,992 ,946)

Deferred tax (credited)/ fEpORBEE (5

charged to profit or

Nz IEIEFRIE
loss during the year e (15,190,501)
At 31 March 2021 7202143831H (165,183,447)

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences arising
from tax losses carried forward due to uncertainty of realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits. As at 31 March 2021,
the Group had unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$2,605,000,000
(2020: approximately HK$2,390,000,000). The tax losses have no expiry date
and are yet to be agreed by the Inland Revenue Department.
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HARAERFFEN BN EBELTARRRNE
F > AR EBFSRIELERF (20205 F) -

BRAREEBEEREABZBRRAIBIEZIRE
BEREEAERBERREAEZRNBHWIRMT:

BEBEEMREL6.5NHEZ

2020

HK$

BT

(212,787,639) (140,472,148)
(35,109,960) (23,177,904)
(1,948,887) (1,875,688)
1,739,798 523,099
35,319,049 24,530,493

BAEEBRREAE MR - .

128,192,909 (1,247,550) =
21,808,041 1,239,546 -
150,000,950 (8,004) -
15,183,782 6,719 -
165,184,732 (1,285) -

RS OA T TE BE 5 28 1B R SR B ER A0 i 1) 22 3R A )
IEH > T BUAEBRIER BT E L 2 TR E R
FEERIRIEFRIBE & o 122021438318 AEEZ K
FERMIERE1849452,605,000,000% 7T (20204 1 49
2,390,000,000#70) - MRIEEEL IR BE
RINB ST -

At 31 March 2020 and
1 April 2020 -

Cost
Accumulated

depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 April 2020, net of
accumulated depreciation

Additions

Depreciation provided
during the year

Disposal write-off

At 31 March 2021, net of
accumulated depreciation

At 31 March 2021:
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

1#2020%3A31R

202054818

A
REtifE

REFE

#20208481H >
NRRHE

nE
ENRRRE

HE /i

2021438318
RRE

#2021435831A:
B
RetirE

REFE

RRhTAVENIL

(1.232.260,28¢)

1326863490

1326863490

(717142.965)

2147700625

RLTAVENIL
(1.309.423.251)

2247700625

931912 1.276,769.414

(95.285,364) (1.177139.890)

179,652,508 99.629.524
179,652,508 99,629,524
4012607

(5,955,334 (14,383.89%)

173.697.234 125,371,335

4931912 1316.89.171
(107.240.678) (1.191,52378¢)

173.697.234 125,371,335

243780330

(227304,724)

16,475,804

16,475,804
493,061

BA7817)

15,260,838

247973.361
(132722543)

15,260,838

60,866,254

(60,886.254)

60,866,254
(60,886.254)

200,299,806

(716.222371)

124017429

124017429
13.750,787

(19.236.663)
(5,405.780)

12991773

200129933
(87138,160)

12991773

14569%.799

(155.475,497)

90,120,302

90,120,302
18105720

(24.776.779)
(1.195,080)

82,264,168

244,186,851
(161932.689)

82,264,168

930,137

(764.470)

18,667

18,667

(142,000)

13467

710000
(666,333

13467

5.860.323.428

(3,005,368.844)

2836964584

2.836.964.584
76,181,270

(147055.454)
(6.800.660)

2767289540

b02.643.228
(3145.553,688)

2767289540
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements
R TR R MIEE

13 . PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

13. M B RRE (@

Building
Buildings services  Information
held for and support  technology
rental Hotel facilities facilities Centres Leasehold Furniture and  Motor
FEHFE  building EFMRFFE  EARHL  eqiupment  improvements  equipment vehicles Total
BF BEEF TRR b B mihRE HAEVBE FHRERE EH 4t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT BT BT AT AT AT BT AR BT
(note (iii))
(GEAD)
31 March 2020 2020F3A431H
AT April 2019: K2019F481H:
Cost A IOTA3TI6 276937912 1264350171 JRINRINYIA 60,866,254 171,485,488 193,484,489 930137 5,760.432.949
Accumulated RetiE
depreciation (1165137320 (69.330010) (17649062000 (22017319 (60.886.,254) (595261080 (138.644935)  (622.470)  (2890926,637)
Net carrying amount REFE 1401986455 185607907 99,445,951 16167403 111961380 hh030854 30767 2869506312
At 1 April 2019, net of 201944818
accumulated depreciation  HIFRERFHTE 1401986455 185607907 99,445,951 19167403 111961380 hh039554 307667 2869506312
Additions B - - 13,361,343 6,612978 29,085,900 53,563,167 - 102,613,338
Depreciation provided FRHRENE
during the year (17142965 (6956.334) (12.236.,670) (5.294.727) (16,709,271 (18116517) (142,000 (136,695.484)
Disposalfwrite-off HE /i (932.100) (260,580) (366,900 . (1.559561)
A3 March 2020, netof 7220208238318
accumulated depreciation  FIPRERFHHTER 1306863490 179,662,568 99629524 16,475,604 124077429 90120300 16h667 2834964584
At 31 March 2020: 12020538318
Cost %S INTITTe 27937912 1276769414 243780330 40,886,204 200299806 246595799 930137 h840.3134%8
Accumulated depreciation  RETHTE (1232280286 (95.265.344) (1177139890)  (227.304.726) (60.886.,254) (622377 (15.475.097) (766470 (3025,358.844)
Net carrying amount REFE 1316863490 179.662568 99629524 16,475,604 126077429 90120302 165,667 1834964 584
Notes: Pk

On 22 May 2000, the Government of the HKSAR granted the Inland Lot No. 8969 at
Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate holding company for a term of 50 years at a
lump sum initial premium of HK$1,000 and an annual rent of an amount equal to 3% of
the rateable value of the said Lot from time to time.

On 24 May 2000, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement with the immediate holding
company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam (the
“Cyberport Portion”) is sub-leased to the Company from the immediate holding company at
nilrental.

The buildings are situated on the leasehold land granted.

ili. Centres equipment represents equipment of Entrepreneurship Centre and Technology Centre

funded by government grant and used for the purpose of the designated projects.

As at 31 March 2021, the fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the
associated building services and support facilities) amounted to HK$6,697 million (2020:
HK$7,012 million). The aggregate carrying value of such assets amounted to HK$2,373
million (2020: HK$2,424 million). The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together
with the associated buildings services and support facilities) as at 31 March 2021 was
determined based on a valuation carried out by Knight Frank Petty Limited (2020:
Colliers International ([Hong Kong) Limited), an independent professional valuer.

The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the associated building services
and support facilities) falls within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and is determined
using the income capitalisation approach by discounting the expected rental income using a
capitalisation rate adjusted for the quality and location of the buildings.
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14 . LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office premises, office equipment,
information technology facilities, storage area and accommodation used
in its operations. Lease of office premises has a lease term of six years,
while office equipment, information technology facilities and storage area
have lease terms of five years, and an accommodation has a lease term of
two years. There are several lease contracts that include variable lease
payments, which are further discussed below.

a. Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements
rrE TSR MIEE

14. {8

AEBEAEBA
AEERELERERAOMPLATYE  HAEH
B BARRSEM BEEREEIEEEEH-
WNEYENASRARNE MHAERE BR
RERmREEENESHARSE FRENESH
AME  AEBIARBERD ST SE SRR
MEAK EE T XE— S5t

a. EREEE
FEENERREEZRABRFEFRNED

movements during the year are as follows: W
Information
_ _ technology
Office premises Off'feleqll'ﬁpg‘lem facilities Storage area Accommodation Total
mazwg  MAERE  EnnsRE HEE {78 st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
As at 1 April 2019 R2019451H 7,382,087 570,020 285,975 - - 8,238,082
Additions hE - 157,754 - 126,662 - 284,416
Depreciation charge  HTEERX: (1,554,120) (188,672) (95,325) (77946 - (1916,063)
Asat 31 March 2020 22020538318 %

and as at T April 120205481 &

2020 5,827967 539,102 190,650 48,716 = 6,606,435
Additions HE = - = = 1,270,930 1,270,930
Depreciation charge ~ #TEERIX (1,554,121) (188,672) (95,325) (48,716) (158,866) [2,045,700)
Asat 31 March 2021 722021438318 4,273,846 350,430 95,325 - 1,112,064 5,831,665
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The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the

year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 April
New leases

Accretion of interest recognised
during the year

Payments

Carrying amount at 31 March

Analysed into:
Current portion

Non-current portion

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 30(a) to the

consolidated financial statements.

Interest on lease liabilities

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

Expense relating to short-term leases and
other leases with remaining lease terms
ended on or before 31 March (included in
public mission activities expenses)

Variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities (included
in other operating expenses)

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Cyberport 2020/21 Annual Report

R4B1AZ BREE
WEE
FRHESD ] BIEE
IR
R3B31HZ IREE
DT
mENED
JEREB D

HEERMNE
EREEERERS

HESEZ REBERENEEHMT:

2020

HK$

BIT

6,896,540 8,486,897
1,270,930 284,416
120,095 154,787
(2,220,030) (2,029,560)
6,067,535 6,896,540
2,533,072 1,941,181
3,534,463 4,955,359
6,067,535 6,896,540

HEaEZ IRANMERSMHREME30()
POt ER

AREHTEE e N RAIN3A3IHR 2 AITEAE
PEMBEZ XH GIARAREREZZH)

FEIANHE&ES BRI EHEENT
GtARMEEZ )

MBI 2 AR5 4R

2020

HK$

BT

120,095 154,787
2,045,700 1,916,063
32,413 2,529,351
178,368 182,335
2,376,576 4,782,536

The Group has a lease contract for an office equipment that contains
variable payments based on the meter rate of additional printout. The
term is negotiated by management for the office equipment that is
used to print without steady usage. Management’s objective is to align
the lease expense with the additional printout. The following provides
information on the Group's variable lease payments, including the

magnitude in relation to fixed payments:

Fixed rent BEEMHE
Variable rent only ESaNEE- itk
Fixed rent BEEHE
Variable rent only ESaNEIE-Titk

In addition, the Group leased a warehouse which contains a variable
lease payment term that is based on the Group's storage per carton box
inthe warehouse. The amount of the variable lease payments recognised
in profit or loss for the current year for the lease is HK$97,776 (2020:
HK$118,420).

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 25(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

156,000

156,000

156,000

156,000

FEBGTA-—MMAERFENEESLK HP
B2 RIBEEINMTEHIBA & E B BRI 21
e FEREREE BB EITHNELEERE
AENRArEREEE BEEZENE®HA
BT HEEEIMTENERNTE - TRIEHBRE

EENITEEEIRZER QEAREEN
MZIEE
= 156,000
80,592 80,592
80,592 236,592
- 156,000
63,915 63,915
63,915 219,915

A AEEBA—BER HANB SR
AEETESRARNEBEARBEEMTENT
BHENANGER RAFEENHEEER
PRz A S BN AT, 7768 T (2020
££:118,420587T)

EENREMHEEERSMBREMEE25(0)
PR EE °
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The Group leases certain buildings (note 13) in Hong Kong under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases also require the tenants to pay
a security deposit. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year
was HK$168,903,524 (2020: HK$257,235,797), details of which are included
in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

Within one year —FR
After one year but within two years —FEBRERFERN
After two years but within three years MFEBRE=EFERN
After three years but within four years =FBENER
After four years but within five years MERERER
After five years hFE
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FEERBEKEVELZHFEHEEBETEF (I
513) ~HERMITERBLAZMARES - ~ER
RERERZHAEUA2168,903,5248 7T (2020
£ 1257,235,79787T) » AR BHIN e MBI
&MIEES o

RERERR > AERRREEFETI AR HEE L
EHRER AR RAAREERIARITIRE BRI T

2020

HK$
BT

204,224,981 227,155,630
129,987,428 130,144,148
40,486,359 66,130,531
20,923,132 15,430,218

14,527,258 9,538,220
39,799,330 49,965,009

449,948,488 498,363,756

- Unlisted equity investments, at fair value —JEETRAKRE  RAAEE

- Unlisted debt investment, at fair value

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group did not recognise any
dividend income (2020: Nil) from the equity investments held at the end of
the reporting period.

The above debt investments were hybrid contracts consisting of a bond
and an embedded derivative. They were mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are
not solely payments of principal and interest.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable start-ups,
the Group has launched the CMF for Hong Kong-based digital entrepreneurs
in 2017. With an initial size of HK$200 million, the CMF aims to provide
Cyberport’s start-ups with early financing and promote the development
of venture capital ecosystem in Hong Kong. In April 2021, Cyberport has
committed to inject an additional HK$200 million into the CMF and extend
the scope to cover Series B and later stage investments.

—JFEHEBHRE HAAEE

2020

HK$

BT

139,467,740 91,921,406
9,550,052 7,846,694
149,017,792 99,768,100

HRAERRAZEREBRIEME W ERR
ARETAHEMBEER AR BESARMEZE

Wz o

REE2021F3A31HIEFE A EE T HEE D
RERESHRAMFANREKRE ZERREBA
(2020%F : #®) o

FREBRESHESFARALNITETRERZE
BEX - HRBHNBSRARBEFSABREZE
MEE RESHEGHNRETABTIFERSSNEE
RFS o

RE—TMAAEEHTREVACEZAIES
7 REER2017TE S BB BRI XX B
REAEES B BREAEZESVERERS
BT EESBEBVAEREHREL(RE
FEENEREEECRIBNER - 1R2021F48
BB AADEBEREAEZESHINIEMRE
BT WK EBHmRRBHINRE
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Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Total

Listed fixed interest debt securities in Hong Kong

The net book amount is analysed as follows:
Maturing over one year

Maturing within one year

Market value of listed debt securities

Listed fixed interest debt securities:
- In Hong Kong
- Outside Hong Kong

Unlisted but quoted fixed interest debt securities
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R AY IR BRVE A

FIE P AT IR SRS E
BARBESABRZRE

BB LHEEF SEBES

IREVFEDNIT:
HR—F L EFHR
R—FENEIH

EHEHESFHE

LHEENSESES

— BBER

— BBEH

FLHEAEREREF SMEBES

49,108,104

35,041,864
723,397,807

758,439,671

807,547,775

84,149,968

49,108,104
35,041,864

84,149,968

86,052,761

252,865,574
361,417,256
109,114,977

723,397,807

2020

HK$
BT

84,074,954

708,251,929
708,251,929

792,326,883

2020

HK$
BT

84,074,954

84,074,954

84,074,954

86,550,506

2020
HK$
BT

249,367,429
351,773,574
107,110,926

708,251,929

Trade receivables FEUER TR
Impairment AE

The credit period given to customers is generally O to 30 days. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancement over its
trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

At beginning of year F7)
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) HESDRERE (Fi5E6)
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B LlRERE (FizE6)
At end of year FR

2020
HK$
BT
21,695,668 19,829,455
(1,292,484) (48,507)
20,403,184 19,780,948

MTERZEER—RABIEIOKR - AEEHER
IR B R U O > RGBS B A REE &
B-aftrmaREEEENER ~EHTE
PEBUWER SRR A E IR IR mEEITEMIE
BIRFAHENE - FEUIRR AR

FEWAR U ER B E BN T

2020

HK$

BT

48,507 60,908
1,292,484 48,507
(48,507) (60,908)
1,292,484 48,507
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Animpairmentanalysisis performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance).
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due
for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Setout below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's
trade receivables using a provision matrix:

AEENE RS EEREAERETREDT
MEtBFEHREERE - BHEXDREAFHRLIERX
(BB E - EREE  BEREERTRUK
ERABERAMERZEERRZESEE) 2 2@
FR BRI 2 BER S E o sA ST E R AREL R
RER - EERHEENRNREBAESER
BESM BRI R AR REERRTRA 2 SIEAT
FEK - —RME BERRNERBE—FEFR
ZRBIFITRE BT LUMEE o

DU B R B AR B R KBS 2 5 5
BBAER

Prepayments TERIE
Lease incentives HEEE

Prepayments and deposits paid for the

rchase of items of property, plant and
pu . I property, p Rinse
equipment

MMERENZEE

Deposits paid for premises leasing

Government grants receivable FEWEUN % Bh &~ IE

Other deposits Hitizs

Other receivables H WA

Analysed into: bair=
Non-current portion IEREN D
Current portion TRENER D

The carrying amount of deposits and other receivables approximated to their
fair value as at 31 March 2021 and 2020. Their recoverability was assessed
with reference to the credit status of the debtors, and the expected credit
losses as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 were considered to be minimal.

Expected credit loss rate TEEEBREX 0% 12.99% 15.59% 10.03% 5.96%
Gross carrying amount (HK$)  BRE4EE (Brt) 11,374,385 2,779,584 3,143,450 4,398,249 21,695,668
Expected credit losses (HK$)  TBHEAEER5I8 (Bir) - 360,979 490,208 441,297 1,292,484
Past due
BHA
One to
Less than three Over three

Current one month months months Total

BNEA LR—@A —E=@8 BE=mA #st

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT BT

Expected credit loss rate TRHAE BRE=X 0% 0% 0% 1.63% 0.24%
Gross carrying amount (HK$)  BRE#EE (Brt) 12,610,432 2,207,493 2,040,480 2,971,050 19,829,455
Expected credit losses (HK$)  FREAEEA1E (BT) - - - 48,507 48,507
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2020

HK$

BT

9,087,783 2,882,951
32,773,812 19,649,943
23,650,198 16,600,613
685,008 685,008
5,500,000 =
2,394,600 2,307,583
6,695,691 7,387,921
80,787,092 49,514,019
36,488,433 22,999,823
44,298,659 26,514,196
80,787,092 49,514,019

20214 % 2020438311 » & Kk Hith U TIE
ZHREBEEEAAEERE -HAREM2ER&
BAZEER RS MH20214%202056E3831
B2 FEHAEEEEREAER
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Cash and bank balances RERIBITET

Non-pledged time deposit with an
original maturity of less than three months TEHRERR
when acquired

Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of more than three months TEHRTERR
when acquired

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between one month
and one year depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earns interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

Contract liabilities BHEE
Other payables HhpERIE
Accruals FEstE A
Receipt in advance FEWGRIE
Government grants DEgiSE =
Provisions B
Notes:
a.  Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Short-term advances received AR FEUE 2 52 RRERR
from customer

Income from hotel operation BEEEWA

The decrease in contract liabilities in 2021 was mainly due to the decrease in short-term
advances received from customers at the end of the year.

b. Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of three months.
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RESKRIBAR DN =EAZEER

RERSKRIBAA=EA U L2 mIEH

2020

HK$

BT

104,902,248 109,010,217
253,818,241 308,565,862
25,259,195 -
383,979,684 417,576,079

RITIRERBEHRITERF KLU B F KGN
ME - ERERRIAERZARREHBRME
ERERNF—EBAE—FAF LUARBZEH
R BRI  RITEFRERERFALH
WiENRHE B EEREFZIRIT

2020
Notes HK$
M BT
(a) 1,554,816 2,528,683
(b) 1,816,708 1,387,502
135,340,048 83,753,225
6,606,703 2,424,808
117,501,104 2,555,800
13,163,792 8,782,332
275,983,171 101,432,350
(=
a. ANamEFENT:
2020
HK$
BT
1,554,816 2,528,683

R021FEMEERLD > TERREE PR Z BRI
FEEFRBDPE

b.  HENRERRE FIHRA=MEA -

Included in rental deposits are amounts of HK$80,473,935 (2020:
HK$49,888,836) which are not expected to be settled within one year.

It represents a fund received by the Group in accordance with the terms of a
project agreement entered into among the Company, the immediate holding
company, HKCADL, Pacific Century Cyberworks Limited (now renamed
as PCCW Limited) and Cyber-Port Limited on 17 May 2000 (the “Project
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Project Agreement, the purpose of the fund
is for upkeep and maintenance of the common telecommunications, media
and information technology facilities available to the tenants and visitors (the
“Shared Cyberport facilities”).

Upon acquisition of relevant assets for replacements, the costs of the
acquired assets will be transferred from the Development Maintenance
Fund (the "DMF") account to the Capital Reserve account in accordance with

the Group's accounting policy.

During the year, the Shared Cyberport facilities of HK$3,247,467 (2020:
HK$6,612,928) were acquired and funded by the DMF. Accordingly, this
amount has been transferred from the DMF to the Capital Reserve account.

Issued and fully paid: BETRBRE:
300,000,002 (2020: 300,000,002) 300,000,0028%
ordinary shares (20204 :300,000,002%) Zi@h

HERTBEEHFEN—FRNENZHIE
80,473,935/ 7t (20204F : 49,888,836/ 7T) ©

ZEECRAEBREHAATD BEERA
B HKCADL: BRI EEE H AR S GRBEAR
HARAR) RENBERATNR2000F5817H
Fress] 2 BB st 81 (et ElimaE) ) ZIGmMAr
B B o Rzt Bl ZBESAERE
RAEEEB PR RERAZ EAEN B REH
R (T8RS AR ) ©

REAEEZ SR NEEERNEEUFER
B EBEEEZRAREREECES (TERM
EEZ)) RPBEEEXRRRFRRE -

TR &REA3,247,46T87T (20204 16,612,928
BT 2HEEHBERMEREREEESHEY
REET Al ZFNHEEREREEESEHE
EEREHERR

2020

HK$
BT

4 300,000,002 300,000,002
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

AR AT R AR MY 5

24 . RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the

current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

25.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

a. Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of HK$1,270,930 (2020: HK$284,416) and
HK$1,270,930 (2020: HK$284,416), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for accommodation (2020: office equipment and storage

area).

b. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

2021

24, f#fE
FEERAFERBEFEZ#HTHEAEES
EL) N oy Sk ik

25. A RERERME
a. TEFRERH
REXN *EEFREE 20205F  MAER
kfF#FEFR) 2HEZHERAREECZ RS
FERBESMEDHIA1,270,93058 7T (2020
£F1284,416587T) 1,270,930 7T (20204 :
284,4167T) ©

b. RAEEBIFIEERREES
20214

At 1 April 2019

Changes from financing cash flows
New leases

Realisation of government grants
Interest expense

Interest paid classified as
operating cash flows

At 31 March 2020 and at 1 April 2020

Changes from financing cash flows
Government grants receivable
New leases

Realisation of government grants
Interest expense

Interest paid classified as
operating cash flows

At 31 March 2021
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7201954 81H
HERSRELH
WiEE

B ERIR
FEXH

DEACERSHEY
EFE

720203831 B K& 12202045
481H

HERSNELH
FEUER T e Bh = TR0
e
BUFABE IR
FEZH
DEREERERBL
[SINENIS)
%202143H31H

Government grants
included in other

payables and accruals Lease
st A LAt FE (S RRIE R FE liabilities
stERAZBF#EE HEaE
HK$ HK$

AT I

= 8,486,897

6,853,195 (1,874,773)

= 284,416

(4,297,395) =

= 154,787

- (154,787)

2,555,800 6,896,540

238,715,832 (2,099,935)

5,500,000 =

- 1,270,930

(129,270,528) =
- 120,095

- (120,095)

117,501,104 6,067,535

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements
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25.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 25. i&Z8IRE&mREaRME @
(continued)
c. Total cash outflow for leases c. HEZIREMH4ERE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated statement FAGERESNERZAERSRELAZEN
of cash flows is as follows: T
2021 2020
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Within operating activities TEREETEHN 330,876 2,866,473
Within financing activities EREEER 2,099,935 1,874,773
2,430,811 4,741,246
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The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period.

BEIMERER

Contracted, but not provided for

The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the HKSAR via The
Financial Secretary Incorporated. In accordance with revised HKAS 24
Related Party Disclosures issued by the HKICPA, government-related
entities and their subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the Government of the HKSAR
are defined as related parties of the Group. On that basis, related parties
include the immediate holding company and its subsidiaries (other than
the Company), government-related entities and their subsidiaries, other
entitiesand corporations inwhich the Groupis able to control or exercise
significant influence and key management personnel of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, approximately 3% (2020: 3%) of
the Group’s revenue was rental income, building management income
and other facilities income derived from the Government of the HKSAR.
All these services are conducted in the normal course of business and

in accordance with the Group’s pricing policy.

The balances with the immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Details of the compensation of the key management personnel of the
Group in respect of their services rendered to the Group are disclosed
in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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REERREHRAUTEARKIE

2020

HK$
BIT

184,945,240 68,100,956

AABHEBERERFNEBYHAAR
FEE2ERER - RESBGHMLGES
ZRIESTE B G SRS 24 5T RA R 77
BZRE NHEBREEFERAEE
EHHEZEHSREERTEZ BT
HRBEERHNBAR HRESFTEER
RS - REZER RS aEERE
ERRABKREWB AT (RABFRIN B
AR ERE R EWE AR AL BTG
HAmMEBRE & HthERE b EMN
RrERz TEEEAS-

BE2021F3831HILFE  REEBFEH
FFZ A BT BRI K B MR TR
AL AEBWRA Z3% (20204 1 3%) ©
FREZERBITEERFEFBETREALE
H2 EEBRET

BEEERARKRFRNB AR Z AR
AHERR - RERIRERER -

FERFZEEASRFERRHBREM
BN ZNERFRRGRE M HRENMN
EL T8I EE °

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments at

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Deferred rental receivables

Cyberport Macro Fund
investments

Investments in securities
Trade receivables

Financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in other payables and

accruals

Rental and other deposits

Amount due to the immediate holding company

Lease liabilities

EEFEWE S

HHEBKREAIE
BEERE 139,467,740 : 9,550,052

BHRE g 723,397,807
FEUBRR

STATRIRIR
B K EANAEUR
TR SREE

I E N
NS/

RERREEMEER

139,467,740 723,397,807 9,550,052

FEATIRAR
SARMBNRERESERZ SRMAR

HERAEMIZE
FETERERATNRIEA
HESE

B TR TANREARZREENT:

13,295,348 13,295,348
149,017,792

84,149,968 807,547,775
20,403,184 20,403,184
15,275,299 15,275,299
2,041,992 2,041,992
383,979,684 383,979,684

519,145,475 1,391,561,074

50,240,157

147,528,830
95,430,483
254,293,578
6,067,535

553,560,583
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Deferred rental receivables

Cyberport Macro Fund
investments

Investments in securities
Trade receivables

Financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade payables

EEEW RS

PISBRERE

BERE
FEUERR

STATRRUR
B R EMAER
REZEMEE
PR 2 I

YNSIEOE]

REKRIREEEER

91921.406

91,921,406

Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals

Rental and other deposits

Amount due to the immediate holding company

Lease liabilities

Cyberport 2020/21 Annual Report

7,846,694
708261929

708.261929 7,846,094

FEATERAR
SPARMBIRIER B & A SREE
BE R HE g

FENTEIRERABIRIA

HESR

127644

84,074.954
19780948

11914666

3.293.234
417,576,079

b43913925

1276044

99.768.100
192,326,863
19780948

11.914.566

3.293.234
47,576,079

1,351,933 954

497622
9N.473.312
94,797,218
154,293,678
6,896,540

489,436,869

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments,

other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair

values, are as follows:

Equity investments designated

EERAABESFARMEE

at fair value through other Wiz AR E
comprehensive income 139,467,740
Debt investments at fairvalue  EAABEFABGZEHRKRE
through profit or loss 9,550,052
Investments in securities BHERE 807,547,775
956,565,567

FEBTHITAZEREERAREE GREEEAR
ABESEEEZERITERID IF:

2020 2020

HK$ HK$

BT BT
91,921,406 139,467,740 91,921,406
7,846,694 9,550,052 7,846,694
792,326,883 809,450,568 794,802,435
892,094,983 958,468,360 894,570,535

The Group has assessed that the fair values of deferred rental receivables,
trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents , balances with fellow
subsidiaries and the immediate holding company, trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and rental and other
deposits approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following method and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value:

The fair values of the lease liabilities have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in
fair values as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk for lease
liabilities as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 were assessed to be
insignificant.

FEMBHERIEFRES  BUERR  StATRN
RIE B REAMBURIRRZ EREE RERR
EEERE -EBRZNBADRERZERABZ
MEER S IR A EMBE N AR BB A
THER HEhkEMREZ AR EERAKREME
BE TERRZETAREIRANER-

TREEREREBAZAABEUNESEE (58
BRBEBEERIN ETZEMRZTRMTAN
TEARR T ERBRBR At AR EE:

HEaRZAANEBETEAREISHABLUF
P EERERFTFRNTR AR gFEAXR
RIREREITIRMAE - AEEBMAESZH202143
A318%2020F 3831 A E & EARNTEY
RBMELENARBELBRTESTEK
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The fair values of six (2020: one) unlisted equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March
2020 have been estimated using the market-based valuation technique based on
assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices or rates. The
valuation requires the Directors to determine comparable public companies
(peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and to calculate an
appropriate price multiple, such as price to sales ["P/S”) multiple and enterprise
value to sales ("EV/S”) multiple, for each comparable company identified.
The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable
company by sales measure. The Directors believe that the estimated fair values
resulting from the valuations carried out by an independent professional valuer,
which are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at the
end of the reporting period.

The fair values of seven (2020: nine) unlisted equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as at 31 March 2021 and 31
March 2020 have been estimated using the recent market transaction prices.

The fair values of two [2020: one) unlisted debt investments at fair value through
profit or loss as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 have been estimated
using either the market-based valuation technique or binomial tree pricing
model based on assumptions that are not supported by observable market
prices or rates. The valuation requires the Directors to make estimates about
the expected future cash flows discounted at the interest. The Directors
believe that the estimated fair value resulting from the valuation carried out
by an independent professional valuer, which is recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes in fair value, which are
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The fairvalues of listed debt investments are based on quoted market prices.
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12021438318 %2020538318 » I8 ERANE
EstABEMEmERE 2 7<IE (20204 1 —18) JFLH
RAEAREZ AR BEERBUT S AEEMGE
KI5 RBLIFRARETERNEXRTF 2 BRE
ITEE - ETHER ERRBREBITE RE R
BRREREETLRARAT (A% > WriEHE
HBB AT LR AR S E S ENERER (s
BHEARECEEEEH) - ZEHLHEITLER
REANCEBEGUBEHNBHFTMAE -EF
R NEEHARRBB IS EGEMT G2
STAREBE GIAGEMBRIER) RAnBEZ
ERIEE GtAHMEEY D) B2 UAaREE
BfEE-

R2021438318%2020F3A8318 5 ER AR
BESAREME2ERZE ZEE (20204F 1 118) 3F
EHRAREZ ARBEECRKAONATERE
fEHEST o

12021438318 52020438318 » A EET
ABmHZMIE (20204 1 —1H) FLHEBREZ
ARBEERATHBEETEZN _RBAMRES
RA RIBWIFRARETERNER T F 2 BRE
Tbst - (AEERESUBRARKESREBLF
BT RELMAE - ERRS RRSPREHBTL
HEMEMTEZEFRAAEE (FFAKREHY
BRREK) RRAAEEZIABEEY GtAGSED
®) BB UARGEZEE

IHEFREZAANBERTSREAESL

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of

financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at

31 March 2021 and 2020:

Unlisted equity Valuation
investment multiples
FELEHRARE HEREHN
Valuation
multiples
HEEE

P/S multiple of peers

B2 B

Discount for lack of
marketability

BAZ T RIEM 2 i

EV/S multiple of peers

FEEEBERH

Discount for lack of
marketability

BRZ MBI 2 a8

2.9%

2.91%

20%

20%

4x

4fF

20%

20%

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of premiums

and discounts determined by the Group that market participants would take

into account when pricing the investments.

MF#502021F %2020 3831HH £/ T A
BEZEATIHEZOARBEHZEREEHRE
DT

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/ decrease in fair value
by HK$68,000/ HK$68,000

BELEF TERI%FERA BB,
268,000 71,68,0007 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value by
HK$17,000/ HK$17,000

B L7 TR L% E A ABERD,
#9017,0007#7t,17,0008 7T
1% increase/decrease in multiple would

result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HK$56,000/ HK$56,000

BE LT TFEI%RE R AR BEEN
56,0007 7T,56,0007 70

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value by
HK$14,000/ HK$14,000

IE LT TR EEA A EE R
¥81014,000% 70,714,000 70

BREZHEREE TR s EREET S REE
AREEERGEERRERITESEE-
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

AR AT R AR MY 5

29 .FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29.
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

As at 31 March 2021 (continued)

EMIAZAARBERAABESTR

(%)

1£202143H31H (&)

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input Amount
fHERE EATHEERARE HE
Unlisted equity Recent Discount applied to 50%
investment transaction the transaction price

pending completion

LR AKRE RS RIEMRZERZITE 50%

Sensitivity of fair
value to the input
RABEHBAHREZHRE

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/ increase in fair value
by HK$100,000/ HK$100,00

B LA TR ERARBERLD
1£10100,000%7%,,100,0007 7T

Unlisted debt Binomial tree Risk free rate 0.045% 1% increase/decrease in risk free rate would
investment pricing model have no impact to result.
FFLEHEBEE ZIERREEA 4 | B = 0.045% ERMGFIE EF T %R g ER
(ERGIZY
As at 31 March 2020 7:2020%3H31H
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Amount  value to the input
fEEHE EARHRBAZIE 2% ARBEHAASBEZHRE
Unlisted debt Valuation P/S multiple of peers 2.2X 1% increase/decrease in multiple would
investment multiples resultin increase/ decrease in fairvalue
by HK$23,000/ HK$23,000
JELEHEBELE HEEE EEF =2 2.21F EEEF TR 1% ERA A EEEN
B23,00077T,23,00058 7T
Discount for lack of 20% 1% increase/decrease in discount would

marketability

TRZHGRE N 2 I8 20%

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of premiums
and discounts determined by the Group that market participants would take
into account when pricing the investments.
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result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HK$8,000/ HK$8,000

I8 LA TER%E SR A RBERLD
108,000 7T,8,00078 7T

BREZHGmMEE ZITRE A EREET S22 HET
AREEBREEEIEERITEEE -

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

As at 31 March 2020

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

Ar e AT R AR MY 5

29 .FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. £RiTEZAABERAABHBE 4%

()

5£2020543H31H

Unlisted equity
investment

JEEBRAKE

Valuation
technique

hEG*

Binomial tree
pricing model

“ AR EEE

Significant

unobservable input

EARFTTERAARE

Credit spread

FERE

Risk free rate

R A=

Risky rate

R A =

Volatility

PEIES

Amount

BEE

14.65%

14.65%

0.38%

0.38%

15.03%

15.03%

61.42%

61.42%

Sensitivity of fair
value to the input
ARABEHEBABEZHRE

1% increase/decrease in credit spread
would result in decrease/ increase in fair
value by HK$16,000/ HK$16,000

SBBEE LF TH1I%RERANEER
b/181016,000%7T,16,0008 7T

1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would result in decrease/increase in fair
value by HK$1,000/ HK$1,000

FERRFE EF TR ERA R BER
b/18101,0007%75,1,00078 7T

1% increase/decrease in risky rate would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HK$16,000/ HK$16,000

BRBRFE L TR 1% R ERAREER
b/181016,0007%7T,16,0008 7T

1% increase/decrease in volatility would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HK$16,000/ HK$16,000

REE EF TR ERA S EEEM
#2016,0007% 75,716,000 75
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Ar e AT R AR MY 5

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

AR AT R AR MY 5

29 . FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 2. ERMTEZAARABERAABESELR
INSTRUMENTS (continued) (#8)

AREESZH
TRETAERSHTRAZANBESBER:

29 .FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. £RiTEZAABERAABHBE 4%
INSTRUMENTS (continued) (48)

/)

ARBESH ()
BRARBENEZRE ()

Fair value hierarchy Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Assets measured at fair value: (continued]

Group’s financial instruments:

As at 31 March 2020 720203 831H

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 March 2021

BRARGESFEZEE:
1202143831 Fair value measurement using

ARBERBUTREGE

Fair value measurement using N L
AREERBEUTEENSS Significant Significant
Quoted pricesin  observable inputs unobservable

active markets (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
Significant Significant (Level 1) D G BEATIERR
Quoted prices in observable inputs  unobservable inputs SERRTISRE A SR ENE 6 Total
active markets (Level 2) (Level 3) (E—#) (E=#®) (E=8) 45t
L Taama  eamm Total s s s S
prgic [ ] E Al B ota s sn= s st
(B—#R) (B=4R) (B=%) “5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ -
BT BIT T HIT Equity investments
designated at fair EERANEESA
Equity investments  JSRREARBESA value through other iﬁigmz
designated at fair Hit2Elm 2 Fomprehenswe 8 A T 5 i o o140
value through other RAKE ineome ) 486,76 434,646 1,921,406
comprehensive Debt investment at falir BB E A IE
income - 116,255,771 23,211,969 139,467,740 value through profit e
Debt investments at fair  RARBEFAER or loss i ) 7.846,694 784,574
value through profit ZEBRE Investments in smmine
or loss - 8,367,107 1,182,945 9,550,052 securities : 601,141,003 107,110,926 - 708,251,929
Investments in EERE 601,141,003 196,597,686 10,281,340 808,020,029
securities 614,282,830 109,114,977 - 723,397,807
614,282,830 233,737,855 24,394,914 872,415,599

FRoREMEEMS F—REE R BLE
BB AMMBMESE (20205F 1 8) cFE=MAZAR
BESEBEIHMT:

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 for financial assets (2020: Nil). The movements
in fair value measurements within Level 3 are as follows:

2021 2020
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets at fair value through other BRARNBEESAHMPENRGSBRE 2 £/
comprehensive income or profit or loss: BE
At 1 April R4B1H 10,281,340 10,152,211
Transfer from Level 2 during the year FANREREL 21,344,675 6,286,952
Total loss recognised in the consolidated RireEmRER 2 Bi840E
statement of profit or loss (6,711,749) (2,305,517)
Total loss recognised in other comprehensive  FREfEEUK =R > EBIE4E%E
income (519,352) (3,852,306)
At 31 March 3831 24,394,914 10,281,340
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The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at
31 March 2021.

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at
31 March 2020.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
financial liabilities (2020: Nil).

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise investments in
securities, equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, debt investments at fair value through profit or loss and cash
and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to finance for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
credit risk, equity price risk, liquidity risk and currency risk. The Board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

All the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions located in Hong Kong, which management believes are of
high credit quality. The Group has policies in place to evaluate credit
risk when accepting new business and to limit its credit exposure to
individual customers.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to
credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on
past due information unless other information is available without undue
cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 March. For
listed debt investments, the Group also monitors them by using external
credit ratings. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets.
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AEEN2021F3A31H L AR AN BESE
ZzERmasd.

REMP2020F3F31 AT BARNRANEET S
ZEmMaE-.

FRoHMEMEENs F—REAS R BTE
BEANMEESE TESAHBEEE =4 (2020
FiHE) o

FEEZTESHTRAUEIFRE B
BESARMEZERDZRERE - BARE
EFfARR 2 EBREURRERREEER
BH-ZEeMIAZTIEZEENEAEERZE
BRMHEES-

FEESHTAEEZ FTEZRBAEERR
RERE RBEZEBKEERAR -EEH
BERMEEERBERER 2 BR > #n
To

FEEFMAERERBEEFEREIERNE
EERAEEREARFZEBTIESRME-
FEFEEHEBR  LEHE AN EBR Z(E
SRR ERAZREENERZEER

55 o
2R

REREERERTEERTEE
TRETERFTADEENRZEERERE
BEERAR (FERBAPELSL BRIEE
& BN B Sl A RN AT ETS) o
MR 3B31AZ ERD MR D 48 o B LA
REMS  AEBETEAISEEFRETE
PR SEATRMEEZ REMAE-

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

Investments in securities”
Trade receivables’
Deferred rental receivables”

Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables’

Amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries
- Not yet past due

Cash and cash equivalents
- Not yet past due

EHEE
FEURBR X
IEIEFEU AR &

STABRNMNRUR  BEK
HAhAEWRIEZ
TREE

ERERNE AR
IR
— HAREH

RERREEEEE
— HREH

84,149,968

13,295,348

15,275,299

2,041,992

383,979,684

498,742,291

RERERFRDEERSE ()

84,149,968
21,695,668 21,695,668
13,295,348

15,275,299

2,041,992

383,979,684

21,695,668 520,437,959
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Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

RERERFFRTER T ()

Equitypriceriskistheriskthatthefairvaluesofequitysecuritiesdecrease
as a result of changes in the value of underlying individual securities.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual equity
investments classified as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income (note 15) as at 31 March 2021.

RERRIERAR S AN BERBRHELE
ZBESSMHEZ AR 12021438318
FEREHZ REREREDEHIEEZ AR
BESARMEEY D 2 REAREZERRA
®BE (fi5E15) °

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% change
in the fair values of the equity investments to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period, with all other

TRETHRHREHARAERAEERRR 2R
FRERADEESEHI0% (FAEHEMERR
BABARSHAEARBEER) 2HRE -

variables held constant and before any impact on tax. For the purpose of UL FmES > BT EREABARNEBERE
this analysis, the impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve. #HER -

As at 31 March 2021
Unlisted equity investments:

- Equity investments designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

As at 31 March 2020
Unlisted equity investments:

- Equity investments designated

12202143831H
JEERARE:
— EERARBESAHMEENEZ
RAEKE
139,467,740 13,946,774

7£202043831H
FFLEHRARE:
— EERARBESAHMEENZEZ

12-month
ECLs
1218 BTEHA Lifetime ECLs
EEEE ZHTEREEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
P ER— FEER— FEER= B et
HKS HK$ HKS$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
Investments in securities* BHEE 84,074,954 84,074,954
Trade receivables’ FEUS AR TR 19.829.455 19,829,455
Deferred rental receivables*  IEFEFEURFR & 727444 7.274144
Financial assets included in ~ ETATEIRUIB &K
prepayments, depositsand  ELAAEIGRIEZ
other receivables* SREE 11914566 11914566
Amounts due from fellow FEW BRI AR TRIE
subsidiaries — EAREH
- Not yet past due 3.293.234 3.293.234
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIREEEEREE
- Not yet past due — [ERE A 417576,079 K7576,079
524132977 19,829,455 543967432

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for impairment,
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

# The credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “"normal” when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “"doubtful”.

Details in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
trade receivables are disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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* RAEMRAMCIREE 2 KRR S - ARSI B RE st
B BN MBS RRMEITRE

ES

EMEEZERARTHAGH B RENETERMEE
ZfEE KBS RBLUR AR INE KRS R - 58]
EMEEZEEERRRS [R5 -

ERAERBYRRZEERBZFE 1®
IR E MBS IRAR M LTIREE

at fair value through other RAKE
comprehensive income

*Excluding accumulated losses

91,921,406 9,192,141

TR
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Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its current
obligations when they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding
through operating cash flows and advance from the immediate holding
company.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,

is as follows:
Trade payables FEfTERTR 50,240,157
Financial liabilities included in stAEMFESTIE R ESH
other payables and accruals BERzcRmAas 147,528,830
Rental and other deposits HERHEMZS 14,956,548
Amount due to the immediate FEEZEERABRIE
holding company 254,293,578
Lease liabilities HEaRE 2,617,920
469,637,033
Trade payables FEATERFR 41,976,221
Financial liabilities included in FtAEMESRIEKRET
other payables and accruals BERzSREaE 91,473,312
Rental and other deposits He Kk HEMEZS 44,908,382
Amount due to the immediate FETEZIERABRIE
holding company 254,293,578
Lease liabilities HEaE 2,030,670
434,682,163
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mBEE R RIEAEEAREEERAZAEAE
BrzRBR BEZASHETRBREREAEER
EERSMERERERAR ZBUER TR
ReERFIHBAES -

FEEZ KRB EREREERMRRZREE
EHER EERERENRSHE LUREERE
HERRPARBESTR

AEERBRERRBBESORTRGRNZ TR
BREEIMBROT:

= = 50,240,157

= = 147,528,830
6,100,243 74,373,692 95,430,483

= = 254,293,578
2,302,760 1,291,320 6,212,000

8,403,003 75,665,012 553,705,048

= = 41,976,221

= = 91,473,312
21,643,443 28,245,393 94,797,218
= = 254,293,578
1,981,920 3,117,080 7,129,670

23,625,363 31,362,473 489,669,999

The Group’s functional currencyis HK$. The Group is exposed to currency
risk primarily through investments in securities that are denominated in
another currency, being primarily United States dollars ("USD"). As the
HK$ is pegged to the USD, the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HK$ and the USD to be insignificant.

The primary objective of the Group's capital managementis to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. No
changeswere made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the year.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholder’s equity.
Management reviews the capital structure periodically and manages its
overall capital structure if necessary. As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the
Group was in a net cash position.

On 11 June 2021, the Legislative Council Finance Committee reviewed the
financing arrangement for the Cyberport Expansion Project (the “Project”],
and approved a commitment to inject HK$3,834 million as equity from the
Capital Investment Fund to the immediate holding company of the Company
and a guarantee by the Government for a debt financing amounting to
HK$1,191 million to the Company. The Project involves construction of a new
office building (Cyberport 5), improvement of the waterfront park and road;
and other external works.

On 1 September 2021, 238,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of $1
each were issued and allotted to the immediate holding company of the
Company in consideration of the injection of an aggregate sum of HK$238
million into the Company.

FEBZINEEBAB T AEEKEZEE
REEEEREUEMER (FEHET) 5HE
ZHEHFRE - AN BT EETH > AEER
ABTEETZ BNEREF ALK

FEREAEE TRARDRESERFE
REE 2 BET] 1T 245 B BR A 2R (B 4R K 2 ELA IS
DEFRN > WHERFRBERZ BARERE > L
BOBERRE - FRN BAEERZ BT BERK
EFI R -

FEBZEABERREZ AN - B2
BERSNE GRS LEN 2R AEHERE
BAAEIE o AL 20215 %2020563831H
RN IRE B

20215F6R11B ILFEMBEEGBER T HITERE
BatE (A3 BB U BT EE
REETOARBNERIERAREHE381E3,400
BEx MBRRAAABREEHBEADIE
9,100B B TR At B BEERZ—EHRA
Kig (BISBERE) - BCEANESELENERES
SRR R AN T A2

202159818 AAR M EEFER AT FHITIR
238,000,000 8kEELTETNEBER  (F5H
BAAEEAMRE2(E3,8008B BB RE
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Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Deferred rental receivables
Investments in securities
Investment in a subsidiary

Prepayments and deposits

Total non-current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Investments in securities

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Rental and other deposits

Amount due to the immediate holding company
Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities
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WE - AR
fEREEE
ELEENES
MBABKRE
BNTEMEE

IEREE EMRER

#a
FE(SER R

FANTRIR ~ e R A IR

R R HI B A SRR
FEH B A TR
mHRE
ReRRSSEAD

MENE EABER

FEATBRAR

B R Bt E A
&R H g

PR ERERATRIE
HESE

FABMBRARNREHRZERNT:

2,757,289,540
5,831,665
13,295,348
49,108,104

1

36,488,433

2,862,013,091

212,200
20,403,184
44,298,659

2,041,992
134,347,156
758,439,671
383,895,966

1,343,638,828

50,240,157
275,983,171
95,430,483
254,293,578
2,533,072

678,480,461

665,158,367

3,527,171,458

2020
HK$
BT

2,834,964,584
6,606,435
7,276,144
84,074,954

1

22,999,823

2,955,919,941

319,821
19,780,948
26,514,196
3,293,234
96,590,998
708,251,929
417,492,361

1,272,243,487

41,976,221
101,432,350
94,797,218
254,293,578
1,941,181

494,440,548

777,802,939

3,733,722,880

Development maintenance fund

Lease liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

Share capital

Reserves (Note)

Total equity

BREEBES
HEAE
IERB B R

EEFE

2N
% ()

U btk

387,752,187
3,534,463

391,286,650

3,135,884,808

300,000,002
2,835,884,806

3,135,884,808

2020

HK$
BIT

390,999,654
4,955,359

395,955,013

3,337,767,867

300,000,002
3,037,767,865

3,337,767,867
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

Note:

Movements of the Company’s reserves are as follows:

32. XATMBERRR @

FATNEEZ BEWT

At 1 April 2019 #20195481H

Loss and total comprehensive loss for FRBIEREEBEAE
the year

Transfer from development maintenance ~HZEEREEESERETER
fund to capital reserve (i

2202053831 2020
At 31 March 2020 and at 1 April 2020 Z IR .
4H1H

Loss and total comprehensive loss for FRBIEREEBRAE
the year

Transfer from development HEREEESEBEEER
maintenance fund to capital reserve G

At 31 March 2021 72021438311

33. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 10 September 2021.
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Capital reserve
=€ NE
HK$

AT

5,367,633,829

6,612,928

Accumulated
losses

R5tiEsE

HK$

BT
(2,197,771,762)

(138,707,130)

,,,,,

3,169,862,067

(138,707,130}

6,612,928

5,374,246,757

(2,336,478,892)

3,037,767,865

- (205,130,526) (205,130,526)
3,247,467 = 3,247,467
5,377,494,224  (2,541,609,418) 2,835,884,806
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